
12.11.14: Page 1 of 3 

 PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

 December 11, 2014 

The Planning Commission convened in Courtroom No. 1 at City Hall for their regular meeting. Vice 

Chairman Shoop called the meeting to order at 7:30 PM. She asked the Secretary to call the roll. 

Members in attendance were, Mr. Mark Wainwright, Ms. Leah Huth, Ms. Carol Fleck, and Vice 

Chairman Christine Shoop. Chairman David Komjati was absent. Also present were, Assistant City 

Manager/Community Development Director Douglas Lewis, City Planner Russ Schaedlich, Assistant 

Law Director James Lyons, and Secretary Lynn White. 

MINUTES: Vice Chairman Shoop asked for additions or corrections for the Planning Commission 

Meeting of November 13, 2014. There being none, she asked for a motion. Motion by Ms. Fleck, 

seconded by Ms. Huth to accept the Planning Commission Meeting Minutes from November 13, 2014 

as written. Vice Chairman Shoop asked the Secretary to call the roll. On roll call, Mr. Wainwright, Ms. 

Fleck, Ms. Huth, and Vice Chairman Shoop said “yes”. Motion carried. 

Vice Chairman Shoop stated the first item listed on the Agenda is the tabled matter for Fast Auto 

and Truck. She asked if there were any changes on this matter. Mr. Schaedlich commented that he 

spoke with Mr. Federico on this matter. He is not quite ready however; he indicated that he should 

have something to go before the Commission in February. The matter should be left on the table. 

TABLED BUSINESS: 

Temporary Structure and Uses:  J. Federico/Fast Auto & Truck has made application for the 

determination of one (1) trailer in accordance with Section 1137.12 (a)(1). Mr. Federico is proposing to 

place the trailer at 61 South State Street as a temporary office for Fast Auto Sales and Leasing after 

demolition of the structure at 61 South State Street. 

The applicant requested this matter be left on the table to allow additional time to create a plan. No 

action was taken. 

Vice Chairman Shoop indicated there was no New Business on the Agenda. 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT: 

Vice Chairman Shoop asked the Secretary to read the first item on the Agenda under the Administrative 

Report. 

• Review of Conditional Use Permit (Refusal No. 2111) issued to Lakeview Bluffs LLC and 

Tierra Solutions, Inc. for soil removal at Elm Street (Parcel Numbers 15-A-019-0-00-013-0; 35-A-002-

0-00-002-0; and 35-A-002-0-00-003-0): Permit granted February 21, 2007; reviewed December 13, 

2007; extension granted December 2008, November 2009, December 2010, December 2011; October 

2012, and December 12, 2013 with the stipulations that were agreed upon for the original permit and 

that Condition #18 be invoked so that the applicant provides a progress report to the Planning 

Commission by no later than the December Planning Commission meeting in 2014. 

Mr. Todd Davis, President of Hemisphere Corporation, indicated they are the developer for the site. He 

gave his address for the record, 3 Hemisphere Way, Bedford, Ohio, 44136. Mr. Davis gave an update to 

the Commission. He stated this development is occurring at the old Diamond Shamrock Painesville 

work site. This year they have spent most of their time working on regulations. They have been working 

along the lakefront to get releases of liability. This process is very time consuming working through the 

regulatory issues. Mr. Davis stated that they meet with the Ohio EPA on a monthly basis to go over the 

progress. They typically have many conversations in between the monthly meetings. The hope is to 

have a significant parcel along the lake released this year, which is an 80-acre piece along the lakefront. 

Another significant parcel is 73-acres that is contiguous to the 80-acres they are hoping to be released 

by June and then the balance of the lakefront will be release sometime next year. The other place they 

have been working on is a site named Aqua Unit 7, which is still the largest area of the site still in need 

of remediation. They have been working through this process with the Ohio EPA and anticipate 

remediation of this site will be started on next summer. This will require significant earthwork, which is 

why the continuation of the renewal of the permit is necessary. 

Mr. Davis spoke of other areas of the site and explained the types of activities that have been occurring 

to prepare the site for construction. Additionally, the economy has seen significant improvements that 

in turn will have an impact on the development. The site has had a lot of interest from developers and 



12.11.14: Page 2 of 3 

homebuilders that has been very encouraging. Mr. Davis stated that the plan is to complete the site in 

phases and continue working through the mitigation process. There is nothing new on the regulatory 

front and he offered to answer any questions regarding this project. 

Vice Chairman Shoop indicated that she interprets this to mean that once the EPA gives the release the 

site will be as clean as it will ever be, it can be developed, there is no danger to the public, and there are 

no liabilities for health reasons. Mr. Davis responded the site is broken into areas. There are 22 areas 

because it is a 1,100-acre site. For example, the 80-acres, areas 2 and 6 along the lakefront, are under 

EPA orders. The Director of the EPA proposes a remedy based on the intended use of the property. 

This area is marked for a combination of uses, which are recreational and residential. The EPA will 

release the property for development if it has met the standards for the intended uses. 

Ms. Fleck inquired about the site and asked for clarification on the exact location of the golf course and 

residential development. Mr. Davis explained to Ms. Fleck the area in question. He stated the balance of 

the golf course work should be started in the spring/summer. 

Vice Chairman Shoop asked if there were any other comments or questions on this matter. There being 

none, she asked for a motion.  

Motion by Ms. Fleck seconded by Mr. Wainwright to approve the request for an additional year, with 

the stipulations that were agreed upon for the original permit and that Condition #18 be invoked so 

that the applicant provides a progress report to the Planning Commission by no later than the 

December Planning Commission meeting in 2015. On roll call, Ms. Fleck, Ms. Huth, Mr. Wainwright, 

and Vice Chairman Shoop answered “yes”. Motion carried. 

Mr. Davis thanked the Commission for the approval. He stated he is available at any time to answer 

questions from the Commission on this project. 

Vice Chairman Shoop moved onto the next item under the Administrative Report. She asked the 

Secretary to read the matter. 

• Temporary Structure and Uses: Lake Erie College was granted the placement of a temporary 

modular unit at Recreation Park on June 12, 2008 with extensions granted in December 2008; 

November 2009; November 2010; November 2011; December 2012; April 2014. Lake Erie College is 

requesting an additional one-year extension of their permit for the modular unit for the 2014-2015 

seasons. 

Vice Chairman Shoop asked if there was someone present from Lake Erie College to speak on behalf 

of this request. Mr. Reid Guarnieri, 6441 Hopkins Road, Mentor Ohio, stated that he is the Director of 

Athletics for Lake Erie College. He stated that he started with the College in April this year. The overall 

plan for Recreation Park is they are under an agreement with the school district through 2020 where 

they share costs and are developing an ongoing master plan at all times. The ultimate goal is for the two 

entities come up with enough money to create a permanent structure that enhances the existing brick 

building and locker-room. Today the temporary structure serves as a locker room for Lake Erie College 

thus eliminating the use of the main locker room by the College aside from visiting teams. 

Vice Chairman Shoop asked if there were any questions from the Commission on this matter. Ms. Fleck 

inquired about the status of the Committees that were to be created to work toward the goal of a shared 

space. Mr. Guarnieri indicated the start of the discussions were a little rocky between the Schools and 

the College. The concern was that the College was not contributing enough towards the use of the 

facilities. He stated that most of the group realizes that the College has invested close to a million 

dollars towards the enhancement of the Recreation Park area. The College has stepped up following last 

winter to help reduce costs to the schools. There was an issue with the lighting of the park and the 

College has contributed to the payment for the costs associated with this. Lake Erie College is going 

through a lot of transition and the College should continue to grow. Mr. Guarnieri stated that it does 

not make a lot of sense to build a separate facility given on the proximity of the park to the College. The 

College values the relationship with the School and they want to make the park a great place. This was 

evident when the football team spent time painting the rusted fence during pre-season.  

Vice Chairman Shoop asked if the City had any concerns about the request from the College other than 

the conditions that have been outlined in the memorandum from Mr. Schaedlich. There being none, 

Vice Chairman Shoop asked for a motion on this matter.  

Motion by Ms. Huth, seconded by Ms. Fleck to approve the Temporary Structure and Uses extension 

request for Lake Erie College for an additional one-year for the modular unit at Recreation Park with 

the stipulations that it be maintained in good repair in 2015 and be removed by December 1, 2015. 



12.11.14: Page 3 of 3 

There being no further discussion, the secretary was asked to call the roll. On roll call, Ms. Fleck, Ms. 

Huth, and Vice Chairman Shoop, answered “yes”. Mr. Wainwright answered “no”. Motion carried. 

OTHER MATTERS THAT MAY PROPERLY COME BEFORE THE PLANNING 

COMMISSION 

The Secretary was asked to read a statement from Chairman David Komjati in his absence. 

“As this is Russ Schaedlich’ s last Planning Commission meeting I would like to publicly thank him for his service to the 

residents, and business owners of the City of Painesville. Russ has been the City Planner for seven and a half years and will 

be retiring at the end of the month. His expertise, input, and briefings on issues that have come before the Planning 

Commission have been a tremendous value, and his presence at future meetings will be missed. Thank you Russ for 

everything, and we wish you the best for an enjoyable retirement.” 

Mr. Lewis commented that he has worked with Russ for the last six-years and not being a planner by 

trade, he stated that he was able to learn from Russ about Planning. Russ has a lot of knowledge; he 

loved what he did, and worked well with the community. Mr. Lewis thanked Mr. Schaedlich for his 

service. 

Mr. Lyons stated that he is really going to miss Russ. He enjoyed working with Russ and did not realize 

that it has been seven and a half years. The time has really gone by fast. He stated that he found Russ to 

be a great professional and whenever he had question Russ was available for him. Mr. Lyons stated that 

he is really going to miss Russ a lot. Russ is a fine public servant that works for the city and we were 

very lucky to have him. 

The Planning Commission and Staff congratulated Mr. Russ Schaedlich on his retirement and thanked 

him for his many years of service to the City of Painesville. 

There being no other business to come before the Commission the meeting was adjourned. 

 

 

   

Lynn M. White, Secretary  Christine Shoop, Vice-Chairman 

 


